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 AGRICULTURE 

 COURTS AND CRIME 

 ECONOMICS 

  
COMMODITIES:  FARM GATE VALUE BY COMMODITY GROUP; POULTRY AND LIVESTOCK, PRODUCTION 
AND VALUE; and, ROW AND FORAGE CROPS, PRODUCTION AND VALUE:  2009 

2009 Georgia Farm Gate Value Report, Center for Agribusiness and Economic Development, College of 
Agricultural and Environmental Sciences, The University of Georgia, Athens, GA.  706-542-0760. 
<http://www.caed.uga.edu/publications/annual.html> 

 
FARM INCOME AND PRODUCTION EXPENSES:  2008 

REIS DVD 1969-2008, May 2010, Bureau of Economic Analysis, US Department of Commerce. 
<http://www.bea.gov/regional/reis/> 

 
FARMS, HARVESTED CROPLAND, LAND IN FARMS, SELECTED AGRICULTURAL FACTS:  1992-2007 

Censuses of Agriculture, quinquennial 1992-2007, National Agricultural Statistics Service, US Dept. of 
Agriculture.  <http://www.agcensus.usda.gov/> 

 
IRRIGATED ACRES:  2008 
 Georgia Cooperative Extension, Biological and Agricultural Engineering, Tifton, GA.
 <http://www.nespal.org/SIRP/agwateruse/facts/default.asp> 
 
LAND IN CONSERVATION AND WETLANDS RESERVE PROGRAMS (CRP and WRP):  2010  

”Summary for Active Contracts for All Program Years (1996-2011), Georgia,” as of 8/31/10, USDA, Farm 
Service Agency, Conservation Reserve Program--Monthly Contract Report, Georgia, Report ID--MEPRTN-R1.  
<http://content.fsa.usda.gov/crpstorpt/r1sumyr/r1sumyr.htm> 

 
 
ARRESTS; INDEX CRIMES REPORTED:  2009 

Index Crimes Reported, Crime Statistics Database, data accessed 8/19/10; and other unpublished data. 
GA Crime Information Center, Decatur, GA. 
<http://services.georgia.gov/gbi/crimestats/displayCrimeStatForm.do>  

 
JUVENILE COURTS' COMMITMENTS AND INSTITUTIONALIZATION:  FY2010  

GA Dept. of Juvenile Justice. <http://www.djj.state.ga.us/> 
 
STATE PRISON INMATES' HOME COUNTY; ACTIVE PROBATIONERS BY COUNTY OF CONVICTION:  2010 

GA Dept. of Corrections, Office of Planning & Analysis.  <http://www.dcor.state.ga.us/> 
  
 
ASSESSED PROPERTY VALUE, TAXES LEVIED, 2009 

“2009 Tax Digest Consolidated Summary—COUNTY”, and “2008 Ad Valorem Taxes Levied in GA Counties,” 
GA Dept. of Revenue. <http://www.dor.ga.gov/DigestConsolidation/Default.aspx> 

  <http://www.etax.dor.ga.gov/ptd/cds/revenue/index.aspx> 
 
BANKRUPTCY FILINGS:  2009 

US Bankruptcy Courts, “Report F-5A. Business and nonbusiness bankruptcy county cases commenced, by 
chapter of the bankruptcy code during the twelve month period ended Dec. 31, 2009.” Data accessed 6/22/10. 
<http://www.uscourts.gov/bankruptcycourts.html> and <http://pacer.uspci.uscourts.gov/> 

 
DEPOSITS IN FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:  2006-2010 

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). <http://www.fdic.gov/bank/statistical/> 
 
HOUSEHOLD INCOME, POVERTY CHARACTERISTICS BY AGE, RACE, HISPANIC ORIGIN:  1999 and 2009 

US Census Bureau, “2009 Poverty and Median Income Estimates--Counties,” released 12/10 and “Estimated 
Population in Poverty Universe, July 2009,” created 11/05/10. <http://www.census.gov/did/www/saipe/> 
(1999) Census 2000 Summary File 3, <http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html> 

 
LOTTERY SALES BY GAME:  FY2010 

Georgia Lottery Corporation, Research Department. <http://www.galottery.com> 
 
PER CAPITA INCOME; TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME; TRANSFER RECEIPTS:  1999-2008 

REIS DVD 1969-2008, May 2010, Bureau of Economic Analysis, US Department of Commerce, Washington, 
DC.  202-606-5360. <http://www.bea.gov/regional/reis/> 

 
MILLAGE RATES, PERSONAL INCOME TAX, SALES TAX DISTRIBUTION AND RATES:  2008-2010 

2010 Statistical Report; “County Rate Chart, effective January 1, 2011”, GA Dept. of Revenue, Local 
Government Services Division.  
<http://www.etax.dor.ga.gov/gaforms/publica.aspx> <https://etax.dor.ga.gov/salestax/index.aspx> 
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 EDUCATION 

 GOVERNMENT 

 HEALTH 

RETAIL SALES BY STORE GROUP:  2008 
“2008 Demographics USA, County Edition,” Trade Dimensions. Pull factor calculations by Center for 
Agribusiness and Economic Development, The University of Georgia, Athens, GA. 

  
 
PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEMS DATA:  2008-09 

2008-09 Annual Report Card on K-12 Public Schools, Governor’s Office of Student Achievement. 
<http://www.gaosa.org/> 

 
NON-PUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENTS, ADEQUATE YEARLY PROGRESS:  2009-10 

GA Dept. of Education, Technology Services. <http://public.doe.k12.ga.us/ayp2010/search.asp> 
 <http://www.gadoe.org/pea_infosys_data.aspx?PageReq=PEAPSR> 

 
PRE-KINDERGARTEN PROGRAM:  2009-10 

Bright from the Start, Georgia’s Department of Early Care and Learning. <http://www.decal.ga.gov/> 
 
EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN:  2000 

Census 2000 Summary File 3, **US Census Bureau. <http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html> 
 
HOPE SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM:  FY2010 and Cumulative September 1, 1993-October 2, 2010  

FY2010 unpublished; Cumulative data downloaded 10/07/10. GA Student Finance Commission, Strategic 
Research & Analysis. <http://www.gsfc.org/gsfcnew/SandG_StatReport.CFM> 

 
PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEMS:  FY2009 
  Statistics and Research, Georgia Public Library Service. <http://www.georgialibraries.org/> 
 
UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES:  2010 

GA Dept. of Technical and Adult Education. <http://www.tcsg.edu/> 
  
“Board of Regents, University System of Georgia, Semester Enrollment Report, Fall 2010,” Office of Strategic 
Research and Analysis. <http://www.usg.edu/research/students/enroll/> 
  
Georgia Trend, “2010 Georgia Higher Education Directory,” September 2010.  
<http://www.georgiatrend.com/media/pdfs/special/highered.pdf> 
  
2010 hep Higher Education Directory, Higher Education Publications, Falls Church, VA 22042. 888-349-7715. 
<http://www.hepinc.com/> 

 
 

CONSOLIDATED FEDERAL FUNDS REPORT:  FY2008-FY2009 
Consolidated Federal Funds Report, Fiscal Year 2008 (issued July 2009), and Fiscal Year 2009 (issued 
August 2010). US Census Bureau, Governments Division, Federal Programs Branch, Washington, DC.  
<http://www.census.gov/govs/cffr/> 

 
COUNTY CREATION 
STATE REPRESENTATIVE, STATE SENATORIAL, and U.S. CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICTS:  2010 

Carl Vinson Institute of Government, The University of Georgia, Athens, GA. 
<http://georgiainfo.galileo.usg.edu/> 

 
REGISTERED VOTERS, VOTING PATTERNS:  2008-2010 

“Official Results of the Tuesday, November 4, 2008 General Election”, “General Election Voting History, Election 
date 11/04/08”, “Active Registered Voters as of 11/01/10”, “Official Results of the Tuesday, November 02, 2010 
General Election” as of 11/15/10. GA Secretary of State, Elections Division. <http://www.sos.ga.gov/Elections/> 

 
STATE SERVICE DELIVERY REGIONS:  2010 

GA Dept. of Community Affairs and GA Dept. of Economic Development. 
<http://www.dca.state.ga.us/regions/index.html> 

    
DISABILITY STATUS:  2000 

Census 2000 Summary File 3, **US Census Bureau. <http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html> 
<http://www.census.gov/census2000/states/ga.html> 

 
HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE:  2007 

“2007 Health Insurance Coverage Status for Counties and States: Interactive Tables,” released July 2010, data 
accessed 9/14/10. US Census Bureau. <http://www.census.gov/did/www/sahie/data/2007/tables.html> 
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 HOUSING / HOUSEHOLDS 

 LABOR 

HOSPITALS, 2009; NURSING HOMES, SFY2009 
Data derived from "Annual Hospital Questionnaire" and "Annual Nursing Home Questionnaire," Department of 
Community Health. <http://www.dch.georgia.gov/> 

 
LICENSED CHILD AND FAMILY DAY CARE CENTERS:  2010 

Bright from the Start, Dept. of Early Care and Learning, GA Dept. of Human Resources. 
<http://www.ors.dhr.state.ga.us/> 

 
MEDICARE ADVANTAGE ENROLLMENT:  2010 

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, US Dept. of Health and Human Services. 
<http://www.cms.gov/HealthPlanRepFileData/>  

 
MEDICARE PAYMENTS:  2008 

REIS DVD 1969-2008, May 2010, Bureau of Economic Analysis, US Department of Commerce, Washington, 
DC. <http://www.bea.gov/regional/reis/> 

 
PHYSICIANS BY SPECIALTY:  2008 

Georgia Board for Physician Workforce. <http://gbpw.georgia.gov/portal/site/GBPW> 
 
SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED AND OTHER INFECTIOUS DISEASES:  2000-2009 

Notifiable Disease Query; Online Analytical Statistical Information System (OASIS), data accessed 11/22/10; 
and unpublished HIV/AIDS data, Epidemiology Section, GA DHR, Div. of Public Health. 
<http://oasis.state.ga.us>  <http://www.health.state.ga.us/healthdata/disease.asp> 
 

 
BUILDING PERMITS:  2006-2009 

“New Privately-Owned Residential Construction,@ Annual, 2006-2009; and “2009 Building Permits Survey; 
Counties and independent cities with all land areas covered by building permit systems,” Manufacturing and 
Construction Division. ** US Census Bureau <http://www.census.gov/const/www/permitsindex.html> 

 
FAMILIES AND HOUSEHOLDS BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN; GROUP QUARTERS; HOUSING 
CHARACTERISTICS:  2000-2009 

Census 2000 Summary File 1; “HU-EST2009-04-13: “Annual Estimates of Housing Units for Counties in 
Georgia: April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2009”, release date, 6/10; “CO-EST2009-alldata: Annual Resident Population 
Estimates, Estimated Components of Resident Population Change, and Rates of the Components of Resident 
Population Change for States and Counties: April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2009,” release date, 3/10. 
**US Census Bureau. 
<http://www.census.gov/census2000/states/ga.html> <http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html> 
<http://www.census.gov/popest/housing/housing.html> <http://www.census.gov/popest/datasets.html> 
 

 
CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE ANNUAL AVERAGES OF EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT:  2000-2009 
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE CLAIMS:  2009 

GA Dept. of Labor, Workforce Information and Analysis. <http://www.dol.state.ga.us/em/workforce_info.htm> 
<http://www.bls.gov/lau/> 

 
CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE BY SEX AND MINORITY STATUS; UNEMPLOYED, NO CIVILIAN WORK 
EXPERIENCE SINCE 1995:  2000 

“Census 2000 EEO Data Tool” (downloaded 5/18/04). **US Census Bureau. 
<http://www.census.gov/eeo2000/index.html> 

 
COMMUTING AND PLACE OF WORK:  2000 

Census 2000 Summary File 3, **US Census Bureau. <http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html> 
<http://www.census.gov/census2000/states/ga.html> 

 
ESTABLISHMENTS, EMPLOYMENT AND WAGES:  2009 

Georgia Employment and Wages Averages, 2009, GA Dept. of Labor, Workforce Information and Analysis.  
<http://www.dol.state.ga.us/wp/industry_data.htm> 

 
OCCUPATIONS BY SEX:  2000 

Census 2000 Summary File 3, **US Census Bureau. “P50. Sex by occupation for the employed civilian 
population 16 years and over.” <http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html> 

 



2011 Georgia County Guide Data Sources 
  

 
 

4

 NATURAL RESOURCES 

 POPULATION 

 
FORESTLAND, TIMBERLAND:  1997 and 2009 

Miles, P.D. Forest Inventory EVALIDator web-application version 4.01 beta; and, National Forest Inventory and 
Analysis, FIDO web-application version 1.7.5r1. Accessed 01/24/11. USDA Forest Service. 
<http://www.fia.fs.fed.us/tools-data/> 

TIMBER PRODUCT OUTPUT:  2007 
Timber Product Output reports, version date 11/04/10, accessed 01/21/11, USDA Forest Service, Forest 
Inventory and Analysis, Southern Research Station, Knoxville, TN. 
<http://srsfia2.fs.fed.us/php/tpo_2009/tpo_rpa_int1.php> 
 

LAND AND WATER AREA:  2000 
@G001. Geographic Identifiers,@ Census 2000 Summary File 1, **US Census Bureau.  
<http://www.census.gov/census2000/states/ga.html>  <http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html> 

 
WATER USE:  2005

Fanning, J. L. and Trent, V. P., 2009, Water Use in Georgia by County for 2005; and Water-Use Trends for 
1980-2005, U.S. Geological Survey Scientific Investigations Report 2009-5002, 186 p., Web-only publication 
available at <http://pubs.usgs.gov/sir/2009/5002/> 

 
HAZARDOUS WASTE SITES:  2010 

CERCLIS Database, Superfund Information Systems, US Environmental Protection Agency, data accessed 
9/8/10. <http://cfpub.epa.gov/supercpad/cursites/srchsites.cfm> 

 
TOXIC RELEASES:  2009 

“TRI On-site and Off-site Reported Disposed of or Otherwise Released (in pounds), for facilities in All Industries, 
for All Chemicals, By County, Georgia, 2009,” US Environmental Protection Agency, preliminary data set frozen 
9/22/10; data accessed 10/04//10.  <http://www.epa.gov/triexplorer/> 

 
 
MEDIAN AGE BY GENDER, RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN:  2000 
CENSUS DESIGNATED PLACES:  1990-2000 
FARM, RURAL AND URBAN:  1990-2000 
PERSONS PER SQUARE MILE:  1930-2000 
RACE AND ETHNICITY; BLACK, WHITE, OTHER RACES, LATINO/HISPANIC:  1930-2000 
TOTAL POPULATION, DECENNIAL CENSUSES:  1930-2000 
VETERANS:  2000 

Censuses of Population and Housing, 1930-1990; Census 2000 Summary Files 1 and 3. 
**US Census Bureau. <http://www.census.gov/census2000/states/ga.html> 
<http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html> 

 
AGE GROUPS; GENDER BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN:  2009 
MEDIAN AGE BY GENDER:  2009 
RACE AND ETHNICITY; BLACK, WHITE, OTHER RACES, LATINO/HISPANIC:  2009 

“Annual Estimates of the Resident Population by Selected Age Groups and Sex for Counties in Georgia: April 1, 
2000 to July 1, 2009 (CC-EST2009-AGESEX-13),“ “Annual Estimates of the Resident Population by Sex, Race 
and Hispanic Origin for Counties in Georgia: April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2009 (CC-EST2009-6RACE-13),” “County 
Population Estimates by Sex, Race Alone or in Combination and Hispanic Origin for Counties in Georgia: 
April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2009 (CC-EST2009-5RACE-13),” release date 6/2010. 
**US Census Bureau. <http://www.census.gov/popest/estimates.php> 

 
COMPONENTS OF CHANGE; MIGRATION FLOW BASED ON IRS TAX RETURNS:  2007-2008 

@County-to-County” and “State-to-State” Migration Flow Data, Filing Years: 2007 and 2008, Statistical 
Information Services, Statistics of Income Division, Internal Revenue Service, Washington, DC. 202-874-0410 
<http://www.irs.gov/taxstats/index.html> order via email when notice posted of availability—SIS@census.gov 

 
COMPONENTS OF CHANGE; NATURAL INCREASE AND NET MIGRATION:  2000-2009 

“Cumulative Estimates of the Components of Population Change for Counties of Georgia: April 1, 2000 to July 1, 
2009 (CO-EST2009-04-13);” and “Estimates of the Components of Resident Population Change for Counties of 
Georgia: July 1, 2008 to July 1, 2009 (CO-EST2009-05-13) ;” and “Estimates of the Rates of the Components of 
Population Change for Counties of Georgia: July 1, 2008 to July 1, 2009 (CO-EST2009-06-13);” release date, 
3/2010, **US Census Bureau <http://www.census.gov/popest/counties/> 
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 PUBLIC ASSISTANCE 

 TRANSPORTATION 

ESTIMATES OF TOTAL POPULATION:  2000-2009 (as of July 1 of each year) 
“Annual Estimates of the Resident Population for Counties of Georgia: April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2009 (CO-
EST2009-01-13),” release date, 3/2010, **US Census Bureau <http://www.census.gov/popest/counties/> 

 
METROPOLITAN, MICROPOLITAN AND COMBINED STATISTICAL AREAS (maps):  2010 

Maps data source: **US Census Bureau <http://www.census.gov/population/www/metroareas/metrodef.html>; 
Office of Management and Budget, OMB BULLETIN NO. 10-02, “Update of Statistical Area Definitions and 
Guidance on Their Uses,” <http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/assets/bulletins/b10-02.pdf> 
Maps graphics source: Center for Agribusiness and Economic Development, The University of Georgia, Athens, 
GA.  706-542-0760. <http://www.caed.uga.edu/> 

 
MUNICIPALITIES:  2000-2009 

“Subcounty Resident Population Estimates, April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2009 (SUB-EST2009-13); release date, 
6/2010.  **US Census Bureau. <http://www.census.gov/popest/cities/> 

 
POPULATION PROJECTIONS:  2010-2030 

Georgia 2030 Population Projections, March 12, 2010, Governor’s Office of Planning and Budget, Atlanta, GA. 
 <http://www.opb.state.ga.us/media/12444/georgia%20population%20projections%20-%20march%202010.pdf> 
 
RELIGIOUS CONGREGATIONS:  2000 

Religious Congregations and Membership in the United States:  2000; Glenmary Research Center, 
Nashville, TN   615-256-1905. <http://www.glenmary.org/grc> 

 
RURAL-URBAN CONTINUUM CODES; URBAN INFLUENCE, 2003; ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE COUNTY 
TYPOLOGY CODES, 2004 

Economic Research Service, USDA, Washington, DC. <http://www.ers.usda.gov/briefing/rurality/> 
 
VETERANS:  2000-2010

“VetPop2007County: County-Level Veteran Population by State, 2000-2036,” and “Geographic Distribution of 
VA Expenditures for FY2008,” US Dept. of Veteran Affairs, Veteran Data and Information, Washington, DC. 
<http://www1.va.gov/vetdata/> 
Census 2000 Summary File 3, **US Census Bureau. <http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html> 

  
 
CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICES:  Calendar Year 2009 

Protective Services Data System, 2009 Annual Report, Division of Family and Children Services, GA Dept. of 
Human Resources. 

 
CHILD WELFARE SERVICES, FOOD STAMPS, MEDICAID, TANF:  FY2009 

Descriptive Data by County, State Fiscal Year 2009, Data Analysis, Accountability, Research & Evaluation. 
404-657-3289 <http://www.dfcsdata.dhr.state.ga.us/> 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL SECURITY INCOME (SSI); SOCIAL SECURITY BENEFICIARIES (OASDI):  2009 

SSI Recipients by State and County, Georgia, December 2009, released May 2010; and, OASDI 
Beneficiaries by State and County, Georgia, December 2009, released August 2010. Social Security 
Administration, Office of Research, Statistics, and Policy Analysis. <http://www.ssa.gov/policy/> 

 
 
HIGHWAY MILEAGE:  2009 

400 Series Reports, 441-2009 and 445-2009. GA Dept. of Transportation, Office of Transportation Data. 
<http://www.dot.state.ga.us/statistics/RoadData/Pages/400Series.aspx> 

 
MOTOR VEHICLE REGISTRATIONS:  2010 

GA Dept. of Revenue, Motor Vehicle Div., data as of 6/30/10. 
<http://motor.etax.dor.ga.gov/stats/renewalsstats.aspx> 

 
OCCUPIED HOUSING UNITS BY NUMBER OF VEHICLES AVAILABLE:  2000 

Census 2000 Summary File 3, **US Census Bureau. 
<http://www.census.gov/census2000/states/ga.html>  <http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html> 

 
PUBLIC GENERAL AVIATION AIRPORTS:  2010 

GA Dept. of Transportation, Aviation Programs.  <https://georgia-aviation.dot.ga.gov/Home/index.cfm> 
 
SAFETY RESTRAINT USAGE; TRAFFIC CRASH FATALITIES:  2007-2008 

Governor’s Office of Highway Safety. <httphttp://www.gahighwaysafety.org/> 
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 VITAL STATISTICS  
BIRTHS:  1999-2008 
BIRTHS TO UNWED MOTHERS:  1999-2008 
BIRTHS; LOW WEIGHT, SELECTED NATALITY STATISTICS:  1999-2008 
INDUCED TERMINATIONS, 1999-2008; TEENAGE PREGNANCY, 1999-2008 
DEATHS:  1998-2007 
DEATHS BY LEADING CAUSES:  2007 
DEATHS BY LIFE STAGE:  1998-2007 
DEATHS; SUICIDE AND HOMICIDE:  1998-2007

Georgia Vital Statistics Report, 2007, and OASIS Web Query, GA Dept. of Human Resources, Division of 
Public Health, Center for Health Information. <http://health.state.ga.us/programs/ohip/birthdeath.asp>  
<http://oasis.state.ga.us/> 

 
 
**US Census Bureau Regional office in Atlanta (AL, FL, GA) 
101 Marietta Street, NW, Suite 3200, Atlanta, GA  30303-2700 
Phone: 404-730-3832 or 1-800-424-6974; TDD 404-730-3963 
Email: atlanta.regional.office@census.gov 
<http://www.census.gov/roatl/www/> 
 


